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From: Catherine McEwen 22-CV-1

To: RulesCommittee Secretary

Cc: Scott Myers; Dennis Dow

Subject: Suggestions for amendment to Fed. R. Bankr. P. 9016 (and possibly Fed. R. Civ. P. 45) regarding method of
service of subpoena

Date: Tuesday, July 12, 2022 3:11:52 PM

Rules at issue:

1. Fed. R. Bankr. P. 9016 reads:

Rule 9016. Subpoena
Rule 45 F.R.Civ.P. applies in cases under the Code.

2. Fed. R. Civ. P. 45 reads, in part:

(b) Service.

(1) By Whom and How, Tendering Fees. Any person who is at least 18 years
old and not a party may serve a subpoena. Serving a subpoena requires delivering a
copy to the named person and, if the subpoena requires that person's attendance,
tendering the fees for 1 day's attendance and the mileage allowed by law. Fees and
mileage need not be tendered when the subpoena issues on behalf of the United States
or any of its officers or agencies.

There is a split of authority on what “delivering” means in Rule 45(b)(1). Some courts require
personal service. Some courts hold service by U.S. Mail or other means is okay. See, e.g., a
couple examples of the latter from my judicial district: SEC v. Rex Venture Group, LLC,
2013 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 44564; Codrington v. Anheuser-Busch, Inc., 1999 U.S. Dist. LEXIS
19505. Copies of these cases are attached.

I propose that, at least in bankruptcy cases and adversary proceedings (if not for all purposes
under Rule 45), service by U.S. Mail or overnight courier be included as a permissible means
of service of a subpoena.

Support for the relaxed service rule for subpoenas in bankruptcy cases and adversary
proceedings may be found in the relaxed service option under Fed. R. Bankr. P. 7004, which
permits service of initial process and the complaint by mail. Arguably, the consequences of a
failure of mail service of a summons is more severe than a failure of mail service of a mere
subpoena (which can be cured easily with another means of service if a motion to compel is
filed). With today's sometimes unreliable mail service, service of initial process might not hit
its mark. And if that mail doesn't hit its mark, the defendant might suffer a default judgment
and ensuing post-judgment collection activities. Juxtaposed against Rule 7004, then, it makes
little sense to require personal service of a subpoena. (And let’s not forget Fed. R. Bankr. P.
1001’°s mandate to ensure the inexpensive determination of disputes.)

Suggested revision to Rule 9016:


https://plus.lexis.com/api/document/collection/cases/id/582R-8MF1-F04D-13NC-00000-00?cite=2013%20U.S.%20Dist.%20LEXIS%2044564&context=1530671
https://plus.lexis.com/api/document/collection/cases/id/3Y6X-3SJ0-0038-Y104-00000-00?cite=1999%20U.S.%20Dist.%20LEXIS%2019505&context=1530671

S.E.C. v. Rex Venture Group, LLC, Not Reported in F.Supp.2d {2013)

2013 WL 1278088
Only the Westlaw citation is currently available.
United States District Court, M.D. Florida,
Ocala Division,

SECURITIES and EXCHANGE
COMMISSION, Plaintiff,
v.
REX VENTURE GROUP, LLC, d/b/a

ZeekRewards.com, and Paul Burks, Defendant.

No. 5:13-MC004-WTH-PRL.
|
March 28, 2013,

Attorneys and Law Firms
Nathaniel Woods, Ocala, FL, pro se.

Jeffrey S, York, Melissa W. Nelson, McGuire Woods, LLP,
Jacksonville, ¥L, for Defendant.

ORDER
PHILIP R. LAMMENS, United States Magistrate Judge.

*1 This cause is before the Court on Rex Venture Group,
LLC's Court—Appointed Receiver's Motion to Compel Non—
Party Nathaniel Woods' Compliance with Rule 45 Subpoena
(Doc. 1), filed on January 25, 2013, Pursuant to Rule
45(c)(2)(B)(1), Fed.R.Civ.P., Rex Venture asks the Court to
compel non-party Mr. Nathaniel Woods' compliance with
the Receivers' Rule 45 subpoena and require Mr. Woods to
produce the documents listed in the subpoena,

1. BACKGROUND

The issues in the instant Motion arise out of an action pending
in the United States District Court for the Western District

of North Carolina (“I‘\T.C.Ca\sa”).1 In the N.C. Case, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) alleges that
Paul Burks used Rex Venture Group, LLC to operate an illegal
Ponzi and pyramid scheme, which allegedly took more than
$600 million from hundreds of thousands of individuals in
dozens of countries. (Doc. 1, § 1). On August 17, 2012,
the District Judge in the N.C. Case appointed a Temporary
Receiver and gave him the power to “issue subpoenas for

documents and testimony consistent with the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure[.]” (Doc. 1, § 2, 4 & Bxh. 1, § 7(H).
Subsequently, on October 30, 2012, the Receiver issued to
Mr. Woods a Rule 45 subpoena for production of documents
{from the Western District of North Carolina) (Doc. 1, ¥
6). In response, Mr. Woods filed a Motion to Quash the
Subpoena (Doc. 1, 7 & Exh, 2), arguing various procedural
and jurisdictional issues; as such, he did not produce any
documents. (Doc. 1, 7).

Thereafter, on November 27, 2012, the Receiver issued a new
subpoena from the United States District Court for the Middle
District of Florida, wherein the Receiver narrowed the scope
of the requested documents. (Doc. 1, § 8 & Exh. 3). The
Receiver served Mr. Woods with the subpoena (issued by this
Court) via certified mail and federal express. (Doc. 1, § 10
& Exh. 4). Subsequently, on January 16, 2013, the District
Judge in the N.C. Case denied Mr. Woods' Motion to Quash
the October 30, 2012 subpoena as moot because the Receiver
“re-issued [the subpoena) through different procedures and
[the Receiver is now] requiring a different scope of documents
to be produced.” {(Doc. 1, 4 11 & Exh. 7).

Further, the record before this Court demonstrates that the
Receiver's counsel has contacted Mr. Woods in attempts
to obtain the subpoenaed documents without the Court's
infervention to no avail. (See eg., Doc. I, Exh. 8).
Accordingly, the instant Motion to Compel (Doc. 1) was filed
in accordance with Rule 45, Fed. R.Civ.P.

Upon initial review of Rex Venture's Motion (Doe. 1), the
Court had concerns with whether Mr. Woods was properly
served with the subpoena; accordingly, the Court entered an
Order to Show (Doc. 3); to which Rex Venture responded.
{Doc. 5). In addition, Rex Venture notified the Court that Mr.
Woods had filed what appeared to be an objection to Rex
Venture's Motion to Compel, but had done so in a different

case. > {Doc. 2). Based on this Notice, the Court ordered
Mr. Woods to notify the Court whether the document titled
“Objection to Receiver's Motion to Compel Nathaniel Woods,
a Non—Party” was intended to be filed in this action in
response to Rex Venture's Motion to Compel. (Doc. 6). In
response, Mr. Woods filed a Motion for Clarification (Doc. 7)
and his Objection to Receiver's Motion to Compel (Doc. 8).
Finally, the Court granted Rex Venture's leave to file a reply,
which it has done. (Docs. 10 & 12). This matter is now ripe
for review.
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II. DISCUSSION

My, Woeds' Motion for Clarification

*2  As an initial matter, Mr. Woods seeks clarification as
to where he “should submit pleadings and motions as well
as clarification as to the case number which is to be used in
the matter.” (Doc. 7, at 4), Mr. Woods represents that he was
served with a copy of Rex Venture's Motion to Compel (Doc.
1} without a case number, and thus, he did not know where to
file his objection. (Doc. 7). As such, Mr. Woods submits that
he filed his Objection in the N.C. Case.

This Court has jurisdiction over enforcing the Rule 45
subpoena issued by this Court, which is dated November 27,
2012. See Great American Ins. Co. v General Contraclors
& Const. Mgmt., Inc., 2008 WL 4372884, at *1 (8.D.Fla,
Sept.24, 2008) (finding that “The Advisory Committee note
to the 1991 Amendment to Fed.R.Civ.P, 45(a)(2) states that
the court in whose name the subpoena issued is responsible
for its enforcement.”). Accordingly, Mr. Woods' Motion for
Clarification (Doc. 7) is granted to the extent that this Comt
has jurisdiction over enforcing the subpoena issued by this
Court {dated November 27, 2012), which is attached as
Exhibit 3 to Rex Venture's Motion to Compel (Doc. 1). To
avoid any confusion, the Cowrt has attached to this Order
{as “Exhibit A™) the subpoena subject to this Order and
the Court's jurisdiction, The case number for this action is
indicated on the first page of this Order. Thus, any documents
that Mr. Woeds would like to file pertaining to the Rule 45
subpoena isswed by this Court and dated November 27, 2012
(“Exhibit A"}, should be filed in this action.

Service of the Subpoena

Next, the Court must address its concerns (see doc. 3)
regarding whether Mr. Woods was properly served with
the Rule 45 subpoena issued by this Court. Rex Venture
represents that it served Mr. Woods with this subpoena
via certified mail and federal express, and argues that this

service is proper under Rule 45, See @TmcFone Wireless,
Inc. v Does, 2011 WL 4711458, at *4 (S.D.Fla, Oct.4,
2011) (finding that “service of a Rule 45 subpoena need
not be effectuated by personal delivery on the person
being subpoenaed.”); In re Falcon Air Exp., Inc., 2008 WL
2038799, at *4 (Bkrtcy.S.).Fla. May 8, 2008) (finding that
a Rule 45 subpoena does not require personal service, rather
service is sufficient where it is “reasonably calculated to
insure receipt of the subpoena by the witness.”); Codrington

v. Anheuser—Busch, Inc. ., 1999 WL 1043861, at *1-2
(M.D.Fla, Oct.15, 1999) (finding that “nothing in the plain
language of the Rule requires personal service™).

Tt does not appear the Eleventh Circuit has addressed this
particular issue and the Court finds these cases persuasive,
especially since it is clear that Mr, Woods received the
subpoena both by federal express and certified mail.
indeed, Mr. Woods specifically states that he “reccived
[two subpoenas] sequentially on November 28th and 29th,
2012, via FedEx and [c]ertified mail.” (Doc. 8, at 2 & 11).
Accordingly, the purpose of service—i.e., that Mr. Woods was
put on notice—has been effectuated,

Mvr. Woods' Compliance with the Subpoena

*3 Rule 45(c) {2)(B), Fed.R.Civ.P., provides (in relevant
part) that, in the event the person upon whom a subpoena
is served objects, the party serving the subpoena may, at
any time, file a motion to compel production. Here, the
Receiver has done just that. On November 27, 2012, this
Court issued a subpoena (see Doc. I, Exh. 3), which Mr.
Woods acknowledges he received on November 28, 2012 and
November 29, 2012 by federal express and certified mail (see
Doc. 1, Exh. 6{b) & Doc. 8, at p. 11). Mr. Woods then objected
to this subpoena. (See Doc. 1, Exh. 6(b) & Doc. 8, at pp. 11—
14). Notably, the Receiver disclosed Mr. Woods' objection to

the Court.? (See Doc. 1, at § 12 & Exh. 6). Subsequently,
on December 19, 2012, the Receiver's counsel emailed Mr.
Woods to discuss any objections that he may have (Doc. 1,
Exh. 1), to which Mr. Woods responded (Doc. 1, Exh. 9). The
Court will now address Mr. Woods' objections. {Doc. 8).

Mr. Woods objects contending that he has received three
subpoenas, which are redundant and serve as harassment.
The Court disagrees. As a point of clarification, the subpoena
issued on Qctober 30, 2012, in the N.C. Case was found
moot because the Receiver “re-issued [the subpoena] through
different procedures ....” (See Doc. 1, § 11 & Exh. 7). The
subpoena issued by this Court, which is dated November 27,
2012, and located in the record at Doc. 1, Exh. 3, is the
subpoena at issue here. It is clear from the record that this
subpoena (Doc. 1, Exh, 3) was merely provided to Mr. Woods
both by certified mail and federal express to ensure his receipt
of it.

Mr. Woods also argues that he did not receive prior notice of
the subpoena as required by Rule 45. Rule 45(b)(1) requires
prior notice to each parfp “[i]f the subpoena commnands the
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production of documents, electronically stored information,
or tangible things or the inspection of premises before
trial ...."" Here, Mr. Woods is not a party. Accordingly, Rule
45(b)(1) does not contemplate that he should get prior notice,

Mr, Woods' other arguments include that the Receiver's
requests are overly broad, irrelevant, create an uadue burden
and expense, that the Receiver already has the information,
and that some of the information is privileged. (Doc. 8).

At the outset it is important to note that the scope of discovery
is broad “in order to provide parties with information essential
to the proper litigation of ail relevant facts, to eliminate

surprise and to promote settlement.” Fj(,‘oker v. Duke & Co.,
Inc, VTTER.D, 682, 685 (M.D.Ala.1998), The Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure “strongly favor full discovery whenever
possible.” Farnsworth v. Proctor & Gamble Co., 758 F.2d
1545, 1547 (11th Cir.1985). Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
26(b)(1) allows parties to “obtain discovery regarding any
nonpriviledged matter that is relevant to any party's claim
or defense.” Relevance is “construed broadly to encompass
any matter that bears on, or that reasonably could lead to
other matters that could bear on, any issue that is or may

be in the case.” Oppenhefmer Fund, Inc. v. Sanders, 437
U.S. 340, 351, 98 S.Ct. 2380, 57 L.Ed.2d 253 (1978). A
discovery request “should be considered relevant if there is
any possibility that the information sought may be relevant
to the subject matter of the action.” Roesberg v. Johns—
Manville Corp., 85 ER.D. 292, 296 (E.D.Pa.1980); see also

De;’tchman V. E.R, Squibb & Sons, Inc., 740 E.2d 556 (7th
Cir.1984).

*4 Objections fo discovery must be “plain enough and
specific enough so that the court can understand in what way

the [discovery is] alleged to be objectionable.” Panola
Land Buyers Ass'n v. Shuman, 762 F.2d 1550, 1559 (11th

Cir.1985) (quoting Davis v Fendler, 650 F.2d 1154, 1160
(9th Cir.1981)). Objections to discovery on the grounds that it
is over broad and not relevant are not sufficient, the objecting
party should state why the discovery is overly broad or not

relevant, FaJosephs v Harris Corp., 677 F.2d 985, 992 (3d
Cir.1982),

Mr. Woods' objections to the Receiver's requests 1, 2, and
4-1), are similar, so the Court will address them together.
(Doc. 8, at 89, 12-14). Specifically, Mr. Woods suggests
that these requests are “overly broad” and create an “undue

burden” because he does not have any information and
that the Receiver already has this information. The Court
overrules Mr. Woods' objections. The Receiver's requests all
appear to be aimed at ascertaining Mr. Woods' involvement
with Rex Venture, which seems to be a relevant issue in the
N.C. Case. To the extent that Mr. Woods has information
in his possession pertaining to these requests, Mr, Woods
must produce such information. To the extent that Mr. Woods
does not have information, he must respond to the Receiver's
subpoena and notify the Receiver whether he ever had the
information, provide a description of the information, and
explain what happened to the information.

Mr. Woods objects to the Receiver's request 3 and contends
that the Receiver has this information because the Receiver

has called and emailed him.* (Doc. 8, at § & 12), The
Court overrules Mr. Woods' objections. Simply because
the Receiver has emailed and called Mr. Woods does not

mean that the Receiver has the information that it seeks.”
Mr. Woods must provide the Receiver with information
responsive to this request. At this time, however, Mr. Woods is
not required to disclose any of his passwords. If the Receiver
still seeks Mr. Woods' passwords, the Receiver shall file a
supplemental brief with this Court within twenty-one (21}
of the date of this Order providing legal authority which
would authorize the Court to compel Mr, Woods to disclose
his passwords.

Mr. Woods objects to the Receiver's requests 11-13,
contending that these requests are irrelevant. (Doc. 8, at
9 & 14). The Court disagrees and overrules Mr. Woods'
objections. The Receiver's requests all appear to be aimed
at ascertaining Mr. Woods involvement with Rex Venture,
which seems to be a relevant issue in the N.C. Case.
Accordingly, Mr, Woods shall produce documents and other
information responsive to these requests. Lastly, Mr. Woods
contends that the docwnents responsive to the Receiver's
request 12—-13 are privileged, (Doc. 8, at 4). Due to the
nature of the case, the Court disagrees, overrules Mr, Woods'
objection, and requires Mr. Woods to provide the requested
information to the Receiver.

Attorney's Fees

*5 Finally, Rex Venture secks “the Receiver's attorneys'
fees incurred in preparing, filing{,] and pursing this Motion
be taxed to Mr. Woods ...." (Doc. 1, at 5-6). However, Rex
Venture is not entitled to such an award. “Although Rule 45(c)
(2)(B)(i) authorizes the serving party to ‘move the issuing
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court for an order compelling production or inspection,’
there is no provision in Rule 45 for an award of expenses

for bringing such a motion.” See FE]BaiIey Industries, Inc.
v. CLJE Inc., 270 FR.D. 662, 672 (N.D.Fla.2010) (citing
Fed.R.Civ.P. 45). In addition, although Rule 37(a)(5)(A),
authorizes an award of “the movant's reasonable expenses
incurred in making [a] motion [to compel], including
attorney's fees,” courts in this circuit have held that Rule 37(a)
“does not appear to govern motions to compel production of
documents made pursuant to Rule 45.” See id.; see alse Kona
Springs Water Distrib., Ltd. v. World Triathlon Corp., 2006
WL 905517, at *2 (M.D.Fla. Apr.7, 2006) (court granted in
part and denied in part motion to compel compliance with
subpoena under Rule 45 and denied motion for sanctions,
finding “to the extent that Defendant seeks sanctions under
Rule 37, ... the rule [is] inapposite”) (citations omitied).
Accordingly, Rex Venture's request for fees is due to be
denied.

IIi. CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing, Mr. Woods' Motion for the extent
set forth herein. Rex Venture's Motion to Compel {Doc. and
DENIED IN PART. The Motion is granted to the exfent
ordered to comply with the subpoena issued by the United
States District of Florida (“Exhibit A”) on or before April
11, 2013, to the the Motion is denied to the extent that Rex
Venture seeks fees. The copy of this Order to Mr. Nathaniel
Woods at 216 SW 11th Avenue, Ocala, Florida 34471.

IT IS SO ORDERED,

DONE and ORDERED,

" ADTR Do S emcy e Dt bt et o Pl et o iy O At
UNTTeD STATES DISTRICT COURT
<Rty .
MBAL Dt o Py
FECURITES AND EXEHRANGE COWLESS DN 3}
=

CHihsmda, ¥icvsn

e wima's pivdey b ooter Cnde, wxts nten

v ]

REX VENTURE GROLP, LLE, 72 ]
] BURKS 3

? ¥ Do NzGedn )

ZEEXRERARDS COL 1 FAE, .
T Dk
KUBPUEAA TOTEODICR BOCTEEEATY, .mou,onomm
O TO TERMIT DITECTION OF FREIMISES OV A (IVIL
m&:mu\mdn
o Prodedoec o mumu;w;ummwmmmmmnwm
mm%mnammmwma ¥ Bgrcton, szyng, 1508, o seinfing of ¥
EEPUSTA

P, Molsdmitords, LLP
wmumamwm
3zaR ot

omq(mvwmwm'm B etz ey s s doadrte) proceien,
o ooty peasnd m;ﬂ«nnmm:&mmmﬁ:nuum
ey fapect, Bcessa; pnvey, ictegrich, kst or dipte by propicy o vy dheipeid it %m

: T sl B, O P, uc r@qbympﬁ:&nulmﬁeﬂ'ﬁlmmw
.egmu- _nhﬂahnmdlvhmlb&kwu&nwmsﬂmmnh

Todsd e
THENTED

CLLEROFCAANT o ’
N Nl e Do

Jnnquvn

Wuﬂmmﬂ.mhhmmkdﬂmnﬁ‘mwm m_ae_‘tﬁm_
iw VS kot o Rt 1) YT, TR
MWMMMT nmmmmmm
AHTIRA ) o s

1A

O Ain Pep
Pl |

AD HD Firs, BT Sakyroma it Prxboe Poracen, Teberaton, 6§33 r

CHAAE R ¥CV59

. - FROOY OF SERVICR
(kL prckon tErxtd ret br ook with she count aitdssy peysieed by Frd R O, F. 45}

This Beeaomun R e of Pricel d 2, I 6ad
wrarztd by my o pag

© Tisrved Qo rbposs by deBviiag 4 by b o md josson a8 follewss

T tafdag T

o lkér.é's‘ezwmﬁm

Dﬁw&uﬁwwuwﬁuwdhwsnnumﬂhpﬂmaml
et 1 B WA foot or dow day nateedence, 1 tho oieage 1 fewnd by h'.h&elsﬂ:td‘
%

———a
My fes uw§ ) ‘St nd § herrie I ARRIOS gng
[ oty vader peondy of pedfary ot B oragiion b
L
=T
d s ko

AdSrd Ko rpaleg brmphd e o ¢

WESTLAW  © 2022 Thomson Reutérs. No claim to original U.S, Govemmenf Warks.






S.E.C. v. Rex Venture Group, LLC, Not Reported in F.Supp.2d (2013)

LAY R ® ey Yottty " of Pt b y e,

manmumwam.mnammum

el
‘a Eetoog me Wkl gy Jort Sl oty maed prodone ama ;ﬂib
mmﬁhm g fra— s gl o oy &mu;hmht: mh-h?dw o b mvsped b
Ya A .
e B e i et Qi i
i
e dmwﬂwhmim E:mihnmnbmhﬁhniumﬁw
E:d or lerption OB 11 (ieinda] e iphea | smxocthly stably Fem, oo freom “
. btmatd “ ros rﬁ%ﬂmmwmﬁhwk
u&&mr:lh)dm perutipye - n’-lsass‘ o B et By
€ rbgoes 1eit 9% 2] The prins
vgh.. Ao Aealcg s st penvids EReroy m
b Fria—ah ey b bos P ol R CERAY
mﬂkh&:;:ﬁ&cwkm(meﬁ“ 25 fr M‘ n:“mo‘w:
[
“:i- ¥ i =i I;Wn hwads, mm
cl
O o e sy o B o prn b ey it o ey LA B w710y
mwm&iﬂuuﬂkuﬂ«w&;m e o . T

i
i
i
|

gy G
) iy 2ar
ey fy | e,

ia
Bix
%
I
4

A
et bom sipl Fad expeay Ylirreion suler s doin Car b R
1) Oeicding & i pacin i
RY Khedordel On s, e oniag o g 1} pgrrly [
Mwla%:‘bﬁ& Senere th o -,
Nt 2 nemcrais Y b avgly; SR it e 8 ey Bl WL
ww?w e e st TN

) o
+ mnd luatﬂ [y Mﬂnmﬂh\n N b :
mﬂu hghm-w@- - MWEMM&#MHI

E
i

&i
.mwm Wuwmw L

T nus:shlh- T atle o 'S
) ﬁtﬁiwﬁwdﬁé mﬁ& h\hﬂdﬂnﬂddwm \cpragtas

. lﬂﬂlhﬂl_rmq
T e

. G asf fesada earerect b umm wmhﬁsmmuuhw
" i - ek, Sy s Ty, 2 el wher® o b ey
rtomAm‘nlmh&wﬂhuﬂvz,

, W g oy
EEERECREE R
o -

TN TREBUNITED STATES DISTRIGT COURT
FOR mnmmnmmm OFFLORIDA

CIVIL ACTION NO: 3:12-ov—$l9 (Westam District of North Cepolioa)

SECURITIBS AND EXCHANGE
COMMISSION,

PlaniiL,
vh
REX VENTURB OROUR, LLC d/i/s
ZHEXREARDS,COM, eod PAUL R.

Defendast,

0n Augsit 17.2013,0wa1¢”‘€:¥:0{&5dewade0£
Nmmpnuhmlmaamwwdomhmmuursmﬁummm.
cwmdonapfmmvwﬁwmbwmmkhw&mndhdﬁnh.
. (C?r:'lﬁcﬂm‘No,SIwaIS)WiﬂthmBﬂluﬂmeuﬁrmdmﬂw
mmmmn\hutmuarmmefmwmummdm
wma.mmuf@mbﬁiaﬂmmdwbmmuawmmam
wileh it foesbustasss (s “Recsivrtip Defimdints) It Ordet o ot repd
o Revclves thy powers aod dutles bo invesdgiss, prarsis ind recover all potestin) chims
m&w&admmmmm@uﬁmpngﬂmmﬂn
 partes &) recelyeeship property 4nd) relovizt rocards end provedt 6o dlssipuson 7

wmu:nmormdwsmpm Feriber, mnmmmwmw
mmwmmmmmﬂmmmm
mm.mwfwmmum&bp!s'ﬂmdmhmumur
pathority, )
Tn respanfing 10 each of the following rquests plesse provide sl nquested
mewm;ﬁ&amw,wmﬂwﬂmwpmmmm@yw
mu@laf;&nms.muﬁmwm-mnwmm
things uc'q-:u!'ﬂy syzllablo to you o )’azrmo;ncys. represalativeg of esmts.Abu'! you,
'mqlhﬂthunaymmaiﬂxhwmnm(og.mbdyormmtﬂuhﬁd&uibe
whers the doctrsenty can be chiakaed If you ars urwiling (o producs themn. )
oo ot you e el o repand semctly fomy o s et ou
'mththMM‘ﬁMMMmmmfoi
_-ywh‘abﬂﬂyhmpongtoﬂlemnndaofbm
tfmmawhﬂemormmhmthummmhmof
mmlep:oﬁmmm
" @ umarywammdmmmmmmhm
mmlsmmgmummm:.mmwimm .
(b) mmbﬁ:fwmmﬂpﬂwtmwobm
Q) identily overy peison 1o Whoo the dosumment-way S5, or Cvesy
m-wmuMWmm

G u«uwm;ueemormmu,um.mmm&
sufficient facts forﬁnewﬂ !om!wlﬂ!lldmlmknﬂm of whether Ihechimor
ohfectionty valld,

Emm@d@mmﬁmméf&u requests In obfectionabls o the
wamdmovnmwwmywﬁhmwimbmnd
mmmmuwmmmmmm .

umw:mmmmmwummmmtme

. pmndfwa!} roqueny iy .’muuy 1 mlotnlhapnum.

A "Yw, W'uﬂ'&vxw!?’iaﬂmmibeh&v}dwnrm\ltyhm
tbasubpomhkwad.lﬂmﬁdumhoﬂdbyhlis&ﬁdmlonﬂﬂydﬂﬂloﬂﬂ

" s, nmmeyn,wptmumgmﬂmwmﬂngyr pUTpOIting 1 84 60 behalfce

vmdorths cootrof of the individual or entlty pidghocssd. ©
B “RVG‘MIM&MVWGMVP,ILC'MVMWMM
mmﬁuwbh\ndmb«mmqrwrﬁmmummbewhgwtm

'lhﬂwdiomwmmdkﬁwm,mdulﬁmdﬂkwm or n whish it

humommh!pmmhmdia;hmﬂhl»dumm)mﬁlp;md
w«mw»wmmm«wm
operated via intenet websitos,

.. “Pm“'nr'puﬁmﬁiiﬂmmmmmmuﬁ&u

,mindins withahmimion “corporebions, eumpem pamuﬁ-ﬁps, limitad puh:wb]p!.

jmmmmgmmwhnsmmmm

“boards,

WESTLAW  © 2022 Thomson Reuters, No claim to E)riginal L8, Government \;‘;’_orks.

5






§.E.C. v. Rex Venture Group, LLC, Not Reported in F.Supp.2d (2013)

D. I sddilion to beasing ks emstomeny sad velloguial msanteg, e word
“daemmet(a)* halt tnslnds oIl feraa sebject 1o discovery psas to Rules 26 mmd 34 of
the Frduel Reles of Civil Procedums, inchuding moy resprasive clestindo dots end

- oo mall, a8 ell o tho orginal it e or contalis b whdchd "documeiey
aro melotlund cud iy sid A0 drafs of espongive "doizncate™

2 Wm‘mmmmammotﬂnhm
trenaler orexe!m;a, d :myd!sc!ou&. trensfer, of excheage of information whether

+ onilly or fesiio-foc of by ldapkcna. , tlecirodls mel), persoral dalivery, ng
mpzamm!m,lnmﬂvn ecdivm trmmsmbssices ot ofher meand,

B “Rda‘.in; " or Yoonoemisg” sbnll mien r:lnng toy, wfming o,
Mmmmmmmmwmmmﬁahdm
ﬂmwwm;mmuammﬁmmﬁb&h
hmmmmwrwuorm@ghmwm_

0. *Beloaging " st teem bwmed by you, 1 your possession, or for yoer
bemﬁi.wkeﬂiamworbwm. .

-mmggmma
P 8 Mmumwnkﬁgmmymmhm!mgu
‘retmdmnw

2, mmmwnmhwmwoahm

dﬂﬁde.?mdonmﬁowgdlnﬁnfk?ﬂnh?diqu&

3. Dovumects sofBlent 1 40w sl e e, passmonds el sy
mdmm:suwdbymhwmecdmwwak‘m mﬂtml:m!mmmlnc{mh
pmwwdstompwvﬁmdd Wmdhwmmﬂmﬁﬂ:m{&m

docamenty sutficlest fo sbow tha besfion and secount number of voch Bcoomnts shaidd
be fnchudod by yoor responss).

4 - Al docamesss nilstiop fo yeor paforming any wedk or ghlng any
nssiriEnos, Bdvica of counsel to RV( &s ey exployss, independent commetor, vendor o7«
egenl of RVG..

5. ATl documents Gxrining on rediied (o any enmploymest or othar pontrect
0f agrecauct betvroin you esd RVO end any valsry or compansation eceived fruza RV,

6. AN douments eoastitcting or relntd 10 my contect of agroeraet of
guwm_iugm!uormhhmmwdk\'i}nnm nmllxé,asmwvmdor

7. An dmu:msn!nmghmy Foanclal tiospctions of sy kind butwmen
you and RV, lnehadiog doram

mmﬁmswtmmmﬁmmmmmymwmmm
p&dlﬂRVﬂ&nﬂmmyuroMmMonmdvﬁﬁwnRVGlnwmmﬁmwﬂh

enyone’s particlpaBon e3 a ZeckRewds mmmchz&mhmmnms
VRell Profit or Polnts PooPy purdcipation In & “muirx® ‘In comsétien with
ZesRenwls . carolineet i o ZocRowseds robsxgton pla petipaion fn
,an&awnmpmymfmmﬁtb:pmﬂrnhof&:&kmm
'u&mmaww.oxmomwhmmmmmor
Ze&lcrm (T mequest 15 20 fscat 10 fnctade,paseword ta ird pery Sacncal

w0 In cofrocth Wih RVG; howee, doswmeats sxtliiiat to sbow the

{ocation end Eotount amber of tach mﬂ shoadd be incladid tn'yoar respoas).

& 'aulémnm'maawn;mmmmuman'
b2 used In jon with ZeekR ’-mwzﬁb.mwﬁvpmof
mmmhiﬁumwmu
- 9, Aﬂdm:elm‘!oﬂammormxrmhhhor
olba-w‘nparﬁﬁpdeln ZeXRowresls or Zesdercom. |,

: Aﬂdau:ﬁmﬁztd:sm’bo&dﬂcm:mmklam lm!ud’h@.tbﬁr
uﬁnmmmm{phwawmvjmwﬁm ’

1), Docepents nsfficlent 4o doocriba your-Interust In any partverskips, jolnt
veshures, or Vimked Vishiity companics during the pertod from Tesvay 1, 2012 or the
dits you'firet becams fnvotoed Lo RVO (whisbaver fe earilod) to tho preserd.

12: Ymhnkmhpwm&tm]gnm}nxmqu'kenge'
rocounts eredit cand end ofker finencla} acoound statemsents duddng the perlod froom July 1,
2012 10 the presert | '

13. Mmﬂﬂwnﬁuﬁngmywrmmdﬂsmmu(dmlm
f, MIZ)wMMWWMMo:H&lHua inctoding eny
nmmmudhw:mﬂmmmﬁngemmmawomkiomaf

. ﬁ:!aﬂcm.gos&nm.

All Citations

Not Reported in F.Supp.2d, 2013 WL 1278088

WESTLAW © 2022 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S. Govmnrnent Worko






S.E.C. v. Rex Venture Group, LLC, Not Reported in F.Supp.2d (2013)

Footnotes
1 Securities and Exchange Commission v. Rex Venture Group, LLC d/b/a ZeekRewards.com and Paul Burks,
No. 3:12-cv-519 (W.D.N.C.2012).
2 In its Notice (Doc. 2), Rex Venture represents that it takes no position as to whether this document should

have been filed in this case; rather, Rex Venture submits that it is simply filing the Notice “so as not to
prejudice” Mr. Woods, who is acting pro se. (Doc. 2, {ff 5-6).

3 Mr. Woods contends that the Receiver did not notify the Court of his objections. This is simply not the
case. The Receiver specifically states that Mr. Woods filed a © ‘Request for Judicial Notice’ objecting to
the [sjubpoenas that had issued from the Middle District of Florida and again refused to produce any
documents.” (See Doc. 1, at 12 & Exh. 6). Moreover, the objections atftached to the Request for Judicial
Notice (Doc. 1, Exh. 6) are identical to the objections that Mr. Woods attached to his Objection to Receiver's
Motion to Compel (Doc. 8).

4 Request 3 seeks “[dlocuments sufficient to show all user names, passwords, email addresses, and accounts
used by Mr. Woods in connection with {Rex Venture]. (This request is not meant to include passwords to
third party financial accounts used in connection with [Rex Venture]; however, documents sufficient to show
the location and account number of such accounts should be included in your response.)” (See Dac. 1, Exh.
3,173

5 Notably, Mr. Woods also argues that the Receiver's attorney contacted him by email in violation of the Federal
Rules. (Doc. 8, at 5). The Court disagrees and finds no apparent violation of the Federal Rules.

End of Document © 2022 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S, Govemment Works.
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Codrington v. Anheuser-Busch, Inc., Not Reported in F.Supp.2d (1999)
81 Fair Empl.Prac.Cas. (ENA} 263, 80 Empl. Prac. Dec. P 40,461

1999 WL 1043861
United States District Court,
M.D. Florida.

Courtney C, CODRINGTON, et al., Plaintiffs,
.
ANHEUSER-BUSCH, INC., a
foreign corporation, Defendant.

No. 98-2417-CIV-T-26F.
]
Filed Nov, 25, 1998,
|
QOct. 15, 1999,

Attorneys and Law Firms

Thomas W. Dickson, Fechter & Dickson, P.A,, Tampa, FL,
for Courtney C. Codrington, plaintiff,

Thomas W. Dickson, for Daniel Hemandez, plaintiff,
Thomas W. Dickson, for Harold W. Shepherd, plaintiff.
Thomas W. Dickson, for James W. Smith, plaintiff,

Thomas W. Dickson, for Lenzo R, Canty, plaintiff,

Thomas W. Dickson, for Henry Marks, plaintiff.

Thomas W. Dickson, for Robert B. Houghton, plaintiff.
Thomas W. Dickson, for George Harrison, plaintiff.

Thomnas W. Dickson, for Edgar Giles, plaintiff.

Thomas W. Dickson, (See above), for Benito Canto, plaintiff,

Marcia Morales Howard, Patricia Duffy Barksdale, McGuire,
Woods, Battle & Boothe, LLP, Jacksonville, FL, USA, Eva
S. Tashjian-Brown, McGuire, Woods, Baitle & Boothe,
Richmond, VA, Rodney A. Satterwhite, McGuire, Woods,
Baitle & Boothe, L.L.P, Richmond, VA, for Anheuser—
Busch, Inc., a foreign corporation, defendant.

C. Felix Miller, Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, St.Louis District Office, St.Louis, MO, for
EEOC, movant,

ORDER

SCRIVEN, Magistrate J.

*1 THIS CAUSE comes on for consideration of Plaintiffs'
Motion to Compel (Dkt.12) and the EEQC's memorandum in
opposition thereto (Dkt.13).

Plaintiffs, former employees of Defendant, Anheuser—Busch,
filed this action on November 25, 1998, Plaintiffs claim
that Defendant discriminated against them on the basis of
Plaintiffs' age in violation of the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. § 621, ef seq.

On June 14, 1999, Plaintiffs served the EEOC, a non-party to
this action, with a subpoena duces recum requiring the EEOC
to produce documents relating to approximately 25 charges
brought by other employees against Defendant. Plaintiffs also
requested that the EEOC produce any and all charges or
records of any other charge of discrimination filed against the
Defendant, originating in Tampa, Florida, from December 1,
1995 to the present. The subpoena advised that the EEOC
could comply by “providing legible copies of the items to
be produced to the attorney whose name appears on this
subpoena on or before the scheduled date of production.”

On June 24, 1999, the EEOC served its objection to the
subpoena. The EEQOC contends as follows: (1) the subpoena
is procedurally defective in that it was not persenally served
on the EEOC Record's custodian, but rather was served by
U.S. Mail; (2) the subpoena is procedurally defective in
that the Plaintiffs did not include a check for attendance
fees and mileage; (3) certain of the documents requested
are confidential pursuant to Section 107(a) of the ADA and
pursuant to Title VII; and (4) certain documents are not

discoverable under the Freedom of Information Act, F:]S
U.8.C. § 552. Plaintiffs now move {o compel the BEOC to
comply with the subpoena. The Court addresses each of the
EEOC's objections in turn below.

1. The Alleged Procedural Defects

As indicated, the EEOC contends that the subpoena is
procedurally defective in that Plaintiffs did not personally
serve the subpoena on the EEQC, but served the subpoena via
first class U.S. Mail and, further, the subpoena did not include
a check for attendance and mileage. After a review of Rule 45
and the case authority cited by the parties, the Court rejects
the EEOC's arguments,
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Rule 45(b)(1), Fed.R.Civ.P., provides in pertinent part as
follows: “Service of 4 subpoena upon a person named therein
shall be made by delivering a copy thereof to such person
and, if the person's attendance is commanded, by tendering
to that person the fees for one day's attendance and the
mileage allowed by law....” The Undersigned respectfully

disagrees with the court's decisicn in %In re Nathurst, 183
B.R. 953, 955 (M.D.Fla.1995), in which the court found that
“a subpoena cannot be effectively served by mail even if
sent by certitied mail.” Instead, the Court finds that nothing
in the plain language of the Rule requires personal service.

See FE‘Kiug v Crown Plastering Corp., 170 F.R.D. 355,
356 (BE.D.N.Y.1997)(mo need for personal service of Rule
45 subpoena “so long as service is made in a manner that
reasonably insures actual receipt of the subpoena by the

witness”); FDoe v Hersemann, 155 ERD. 630, 630631
(N.I).Ind.1994) (“The plain language of the rule requires only
that the subpoena be defivered to the person served by a
qualified person®).

*2  Furthermore, the EEOC has not demonstrated any
prejudice resulting from Plaintiffs' service of the subpoena by
mail. Specifically, it is undisputed that the EEQC received
actual notice of the subpoena, as evidenced by the EEOC's
timely objection to the subpoena. At this point, requiring the
Plaintiffs to personally serve the subpoena would result in
mere undue delay.

Additionally, the Court rejects the EEOC's contention that the
subpoena is defective in that Plaintiffs did not include a check
for fees and mileage. As indicated, the subpoena notified the
EEOC that it could comply with the subpoena by merety
mailing the documents to Plaintiffs’ counsel, Thus, an EEOC
representative was not required to travel to Tampa, Florida, to
personally deliver the documents., Moreover, Plaintiffy state
that they will reimburse the EEOC for its copying costs upon
notification of the amount.

Having found that the subpoena is not procedurally defective,
the Court turns to the EEOC's substantive arguments.

11. Confidentiality

A. Information Relating to Charges Under Title VII or the
ADA
The EEOC contends that some of the requested documents
relate to Title VIL and ADA charges by persons who are not
parties to the instant lawsuit, and, as such, the documents

cannot be disclosed. The EEOC specifically relies on F:I42
U.S.C. § 2000e—8(e), which provides that it is unlawful for
an officer or employee of the EEOC “to make public in any
manner whatever information obtained by the Commission
pursuant to its authority under this section prior to the
institution of any proceeding under this subchapter involving
such information....” This provision is also applicable to cases

brought pursuant to the ADA, See 53]42 U.8.C. § 12117(a).

Plaintiffs respond that the prohibition of F”342 Us.C. §
2000e—8(e) does not forbid an officer or employer of the
EEOC from disclosing materials to a charging party if the
documents relate to other charges against the same respondent
that are like and related to the charging party's allegations of
diserimination, (Dkt.12, p. 5.)

The BEEOC correctly points out, however, that the Supreme

Court rejected such an argument in F:]Eqaml Employment
Opportunity Conunission v. Associated Dry Goods Corp., 449
U.S8. 590, 101 8.Ct, 817, 66 L.Ed.2d 762 (1980). Specifically,
while the Court found permissible the disclosure of EEQC
investigative information in a charging party's file to the party
himself, the Court also found that “nothing in the statute or its
legislative history reveals any intent to allow the Commission
to reveal to that charging party information in the files of
other charging parties who have brought claims against the

satne employer.” Fald. at 603 (footnote omitted). The Court
continued that “there is no reason why the charging party
should know the content of any other employee's charge, and
he must be considered a member of the public with respect to
charges filed by other people. With respect to all files other
than his own, he is a stranger.” /d.

*3 Thus, given the limited disclosure of certain EEOC files
permitted by dssociated Dry Goods, this Court DENIES
the Plaintifls' motion to the subpoena to the extent that
Plaintiffs request the files of persons who are not parties to
this action and who claimed violations of Title VII or the
ADA against his Defendant. If it has not already done so, the
EEOC shall produce, however, any files and/or documents
relating to the named Plaintiffs, Furthermore, if there is
information contained in files of charging parties other than
the named Plaintiffs that is generally relevant to the named
Plaintiffs and the Defendant in this case and is used by
the agency in consideration of the Plaintifis' charge, but
due to administrative convenience is not contained in the
named Plaintiffs’ files, it too shall be produced. See EEQOC v.
Associated Dry Goods Corp., 499 U.S, 590, 604 (1981). In
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Associated Dry Goods, the Court specifically noted that by
including information about an employer's general practices
that would be relevant to each charging party in each party's
file, the Comumission can fully comply with the statute while
giving each party the information necessary to evaluate the
strength of his or her case. Jd.

B. Charges Under the ADEA Only
Both Plaintiff and the EEQOC recognize that the ADEA
does not contain a similar confidentiality provision to that
confained in Title VII and the ADA. The EEOC argues,
however, that to the extent that Plaintift requests information
relating its investigation of charges filed under the ADEA,
the disclosure of such information would constitute an
unwarranted invasion of privacy under the Freedom of

Information Act and should not be required. See F‘—JS
U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)C) (exempting from disclosure to the
public “records or information cempiled for law enforcement
purposes, but only to the extent that the production of such
law enforcement records or information ... could reasonably
be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal
privacy....”) Plaintiffs respond that this exemption of the
FOIA provides that requests for open EEQC case files are
exempt from public disclosures as investigatory records but
does ntot apply to closed files. Plaintiffs contend that they do
not seek any information from open files and, as such, the
documents must be produced. Neither party points this Court
to any authority in support of its position,

First, the Court rejects Plaintiffs’ claim that Fj§ 552(b)
{7}(C) applies solely to open files. As indicated, Plaintiffs
fail to point this Court to any authority supporting their

contention. Nothing in the plain language of F‘j§ 552(b)
(7)C) suggests that the exemption is limited to “open”
files. Furthermore, this Court's own research has failed to
locate any authority suggesting such a limitation. While

the exemption located at P3§ 552(b)(7)(A ) appears to

apply solely to pending investigations, see Frito—l.ay
v US. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, 964
F.Supp. 236, 238 (W.D.Ken.1997), there simply is no similar

limitation with regard to Ft'§ 552(b}(7)C ). The Court
therefore turns to the EEQC's contention that the information
is not subject to disclosure because it would likety result in an
unwarranted invasion of privacy.

*4 As the philosophy behind the FOIA is to allow broad
disclosure, the courts interpret the exemptions of the FOIA

narrowly. See %Nadler v ULS. Department of Justice, 955
F.2d 1479, 1484 (11th Cir.1992). The government agency
seeking to withhold the information requested has the burden
of proving the applicability of an exception to the FOIA. 14,
In this case, the EEOC must demonstrate that the information
sought was compiled for law enforcement purposes and that
its disclosure ““could reasonably be expected to constitute an
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.” See Rosenglick
v. Infernal Revenue Service, No. 97-747-Civ—Orl-18A,

1998 WL 773629, #2 (M.D.Fla. March 10, 1998). “The
determination of whether the agency has met its burden is
difticult, so several tools have been developed to aid the
courts. Available methods for determination include a Vaughn
index, ex parte in camera review of the requested documents
in their unredacted form, or fact-specific affidavits of the
parties. The trial court must find an adequate factual basis to
support a finding or privilege, but the use of the described

methods is discretionary.” IECappabr'mzca v. Commissioner,
United States Customs Service, 847 F.Supp. 1558, 1561
{M.D.Fla.1994)

Plaintifts do not appear to dispute that the information
sought was compiled for law enforcement purposes. Thus,
the Court turns to whether its disclosure would constitute
an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. In meeting
its burden with respect to this prerequisite, the government
agency need not demonstrate “to a certainty that release
will lead to an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy....”
1d. at 1448 (citation omitted). Rather, the EEQC need only
demonstrate a “reasonable expectation” of such an invasion.
Id.

To determine whether the disclosure of documents will result
in an unwarranted invasion of privacy, the court must balance
the individual's privacy interest against the public interest

in disclosure of the information. PJO'Kane v. United States
Customs Service, 169 F.3d 1308, 1309 (I11th Cir.i1999);

@Nad!er: 955 F.2d at 1487. “Only the interest of the general
public, and nof that of the private litigant, is relevant to [the

court's] inquiry.” @Iaﬁ at 1489. “Disclosure of the requested
information is in the public interest only if it furthers the
public's statutorily created right to be informed about what
their government is up to,” Id. {citation omitted).
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1. Individuals' Privacy Interests
While this Court is unaware of any published or unpublished
opinion where a court found that EROC files relating to

ADEA claims were exempt from disclosure under F‘:|§
552(b)(7)(C), courts have found information relating to other
investigations is exempt. For instance, information gathered
during an internal investigation relating to allegations of
harassment and retaliation has been found to be exempt from

disclosure. See Cappabimaca v. Commissioner, Unifed
States Customs Service, 847 F.Supp. 1558 (M.D.Fla.1994),
Similarly, information relating to an OSHA investigation has
been afforded protection. See L & C Marine Transport, 740
F.2d at 922,

#§ The Eleventh Circuit has found that an individual has
a substantial privacy interest where disclosure would lead to
the type of harm, embarrassment and possible retaliation. L
& C Marine Transport, 740 F.2d at 922 (names and other
identifying information related to an OHSA investigation
exempt from disclosure). The court explained that, “[t|here
can be little doubt that an employee will feel more free to
talk with federal law enforcement officials about possible
employer violations if he feels his name will not be attached to
his statements. /d. The court further found that an individual
docs not lose his/her privacy interest simply because his
identity may be discovered through other means. L & C
Marine Transport, 740 F.2d at 922. See Lioyd & Henniger v,
Marshall, 526 E.Supp. 485 (M.D.Fia.1981) (home addresses
of witnesses and employees interviewed by OSHA could be

withheld under F:|§ 552(b)(7)(C) where disclosure of home
addresses would subject the persons (o precisely the harm the
exemption was intended to prevent).

ii. Public Interest
“In order to compel release of materials, there must be a
public inferest because ‘something, even a modest privacy

interest outweighs nothing every time.’ » FHCappabianca V.
Commissioner, United States Customs Service, 347 E.Supp.
1558, 1564 (M.D.Fla.1994) (citation omitted).

The court it Nedler found that the government properly
utilized the exemption under 552(b){7)(c) where disclosure of
identities of FBI witnesses would disclose virtually nothing
about the conduct of the government. /4. The court explained,
“Enabling the public to learn about the conduct of private
citizens is not the type of public interest the FOIA was
intended to serve.” Id. Similarly, the court in L & C Marine
Transport found that information, including the names of
employee witnesses of an accident who were interviewed
by OSHA, fells within the 7© exemption where there
was no public interest in the identities of the witnesses.
740 F.2d at 922. The court acknowledged the plaintiff's
contention that it needed the information to use as evidence
in pending litigation, but explained that the private needs of
a company plays no part in the determination of whether

disclosure is appropriate. ld. Accord FUCappabim:ca |
Commissioner, United States Customs Service, 8347 F.Supp.
1558 (M.D.F1a.1994). See Lioyd & Henniger v. Marshall, 526
F.Supp. 485 (M.D.Fla.1981) (“[TThe disclosure provisions
of FOIA are not a substitute for discovery, and a party's
asserted need for docwments in connection with litigation will
not affect, one way or the other, a determination of whether
disclosure is warranted under FOIA.”} (citation omitted).

Like in L & C Marine Transport, Plaintiffs fail to present any
evidence as to how disclosure of the information will serve
the public interest. Rather, it appears that Plaintiffs seck the
requested information solely for use in the instant litigation.

*6 It is ORDERED as follows:

The Plaintiffs' Motion to Compel (Dkt.12) is DENIED, except
as set forth on page five (5) herein, in accordance with the
foregoing. Production required by this order shall be made
within (15) days of the date of this order. Each party shall bear
its own fees and costs associated with the filing of this motion.

All Citations

Not Reported in F.Supp.2d, 1999 WL 1043861, 81 Fair
Empl Prac.Cas. (BNA) 263, 80 Empl. Prac. Dec. P 40,461

End of Document
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Rule 45 F.R.Civ.P. applies in cases under the Code. Delivery of the subpoena may be
made in any manner permitted by Rule 7004.
Some related Rules Committee history: The Civil Rules Committee considered the issue of
service of subpoenas under Rule 45 in November 2016 under 16-CV-B. 16-CV-B is flagged
on uscourts.gov as retained on the agenda for further research. See discussion at Agenda Item
5(c) — page 187 of the agenda book: https://www.uscourts.gov/sites/default/files/2016-11-
civil-agenda_book_0.pdf.
If submission of my suggestion can be considered separately from an amendment to Rule 45,
I hope that it will.
Thank you for your consideration.

Catherine Peek McEwen

U.S. Bankruptcy Judge

Middle District of Florida

801 N. Florida Avenue, Chamber 8B
Tampa, FL 33602


http://uscourts.gov/
https://www.uscourts.gov/sites/default/files/2016-11-civil-agenda_book_0.pdf
https://www.uscourts.gov/sites/default/files/2016-11-civil-agenda_book_0.pdf

$.E.C. v. Rex Venture Group, LLC, Not Reported in F.Supp.2d (2013)

22-BK-G
22-CV-1

2013 WL 1278088
Only the Westlaw citation is currently available.
United States District Court, M.D. Florida,
Ocala Division,

SECURITIES and EXCHANGE
COMMISSION, Plaintiff,
v.
REX VENTURE GROUP, LLC, d/b/a

ZeekRewards.com, and Paul Burks, Defendant.

No. 5:13-MC004—-WTIH-PRL.
|
March 28, 2013,

Attorneys and Law Firms
Nathaniel Woods, Ocala, FL, pro se.

Jeffrey S, York, Melissa W. Nelson, McGuire Woods, LLP,
Jacksonville, ¥L, for Defendant.

ORDER
PHILIP R. LAMMENS, United States Magistrate Judge.

*1 This cause is before the Court on Rex Venture Group,
LLC's Court—Appointed Receiver's Motion to Compel Non—
Party Nathaniel Woods' Compliance with Rule 45 Subpoena
(Doc. 1), filed on January 25, 2013, Pursuant to Rule
45(c)(2)(B)(1), Fed.R.Civ.P., Rex Venture asks the Court to
compel non-party Mr. Nathaniel Woods' compliance with
the Receivers' Rule 45 subpoena and require Mr. Woods to
produce the documents listed in the subpoena.

1. BACKGROUND

The issues in the instant Motion arise out of an action pending
in the United States District Court for the Western District

of North Carolina (“I‘\T.C.Ca\sa”).1 In the N.C. Case, the
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) alleges that
Paul Burks used Rex Venture Group, LLC to operate an illegal
Ponzi and pyramid scheme, which allegedly took more than
$600 million from hundreds of thousands of individuals in
dozens of countries. (Doc. 1, § 1). On August 17, 2012,
the District Judge in the N.C. Case appointed a Temporary
Receiver and gave him the power to “issue subpoenas for

~Attachment [ of 2
documents and testimony consistent with the Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure[.]” (Doc. 1, § 2, 4 & Bxh. 1, § 7(H).
Subsequently, on October 30, 2012, the Receiver issued to
Mr. Woods a Rule 45 subpoena for production of documents
{from the Western District of North Carolina) (Doc. 1, ¥
6). In response, Mr. Woods filed a Motion to Quash the
Subpoena (Doc. 1, 7 & Exh, 2), arguing various procedural
and jurisdictional issues; as such, he did not produce any
documents. (Doc. 1, 7).

Thereafter, on November 27, 2012, the Receiver issued a new
subpoena from the United States District Court for the Middle
District of Florida, wherein the Receiver narrowed the scope
of the requested documents. (Doc. 1, § 8 & Exh. 3). The
Receiver served Mr. Woods with the subpoena (issued by this
Court) via certified mail and federal express. (Doc. 1, 9§ 10
& Exh. 4). Subsequently, on Jannary 16, 2013, the District
Judge in the N.C. Case denied Mr. Woods' Motion fo Quash
the October 30, 2012 subpoena as moot because the Receiver
“re-issued [the subpoena) through different procedures and
[the Receiver is now] requiring a different scope of documents
to be produced.” {(Doc. 1, 4 11 & Exh. 7).

Further, the record before this Court demonstrates that the
Receiver's counsel has contacted Mr. Woods in attempts
to obtain the subpoenaed documents without the Court's
infervention to no avail. (See eg., Doc. I, Exh. 8).
Accordingly, the instant Motion to Compel (Doc. 1) was filed
in accordance with Rule 45, Fed. R.Civ.P.

Upon initial review of Rex Venture's Motion (Doe. 1), the
Court had concerns with whether Mr. Woods was properly
served with the subpoena; accordingly, the Court entered an
Order to Show (Doc. 3); to which Rex Venture responded.
(Doc. 5). In addition, Rex Venture notified the Court that Mr,
Woods had filed what appeared to be an objection to Rex
Venture's Motion to Compel, but had done so in a different

case. > {Doc. 2). Based on this Notice, the Court ordered
Mr. Woods to notify the Court whether the document titled
“Objection to Receiver's Motion to Compel Nathaniel Woods,
a Non—Party” was intended to be filed in this action in
response to Rex Venture's Motion to Compel. (Doc. 6). In
response, Mr. Woods filed a Motion for Clarification (Doc. 7)
and his Objection to Receiver's Motion to Compel (Doc. 8).
Finally, the Court granted Rex Venture's leave to file a reply,
which it has done. (Docs. 10 & 12). This matter is now ripe
for review.
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II. DISCUSSION

My, Woeds' Motion for Clarification

*2  As an initial matter, Mr. Woods seeks clarification as
to where he “should submit pleadings and motions as well
as clarification as to the case number which is to be used in
the matter.” (Doc. 7, at 4), Mr. Woods represents that he was
served with a copy of Rex Venture's Motion to Compel (Doc.
1} without a case number, and thus, he did not know where to
file his objection. (Doc. 7). As such, Mr. Woods submits that
he filed his Objection in the N.C. Case.

This Court has jurisdiction over enforcing the Rule 45
subpoena issued by this Court, which is dated November 27,
2012. See Great American Ins. Co. v General Contraclors
& Const. Mgmt., Inc., 2008 WL 4372884, at *1 (8.D.Fla,
Sept.24, 2008) (finding that “The Advisory Committee note
to the 1991 Amendment to Fed.R.Civ.P, 45(a)(2) states that
the court in whose name the subpoena issued is responsible
for its enforcement.”). Accordingly, Mr. Woods' Motion for
Clarification (Doc. 7) is granted to the extent that this Comt
has jurisdiction over enforcing the subpoena issued by this
Court {dated November 27, 2012), which is attached as
Exhibit 3 to Rex Venture's Motion to Compel (Doc. 1). To
avoid any confusion, the Cowrt has attached to this Order
{as “Exhibit A™) the subpoena subject to this Order and
the Court's jurisdiction, The case number for this action is
indicated on the first page of this Order. Thus, any documents
that Mr. Woeds would like to file pertaining to the Rule 45
subpoena isswed by this Court and dated November 27, 2012
(“Exhibit A"}, should be filed in this action.

Service of the Subpoena

Next, the Court must address its concerns (see doc. 3)
regarding whether Mr. Woods was properly served with
the Rule 45 subpoena issued by this Court. Rex Venture
represents that it served Mr. Woods with this subpoena
via certified mail and federal express, and argues that this

service is proper under Rule 45, See @TmcFone Wireless,
Inc. v Does, 2011 WL 4711458, at *4 (S.D.Fla, Oct.4,
2011) (finding that “service of a Rule 45 subpoena need
not be effectuated by personal delivery on the person
being subpoenaed.”); In re Falcon Air Exp., Inc., 2008 WL
2038799, at *4 (Bkrtcy.S.).Fla. May 8, 2008) (finding that
a Rule 45 subpoena does not require personal service, rather
service is sufficient where it is “reasonably calculated to
insure receipt of the subpoena by the witness.”); Codrington

v. Anheuser—Busch, Inc. ., 1999 WL 1043861, at *1-2
(M.D.Fla, Oct.15, 1999) (finding that “nothing in the plain
language of the Rule requires personal service™).

Tt does not appear the Eleventh Circuit has addressed this
particular issue and the Court finds these cases persuasive,
especially since it is clear that Mr, Woods received the
subpoena both by federal express and certified mail.
indeed, Mr. Woods specifically states that he “reccived
[two subpoenas] sequentially on November 28th and 29th,
2012, via FedEx and [c]ertified mail.” (Doc. 8, at 2 & 11).
Accordingly, the purpose of service—i.e., that Mr. Woods was
put on notice—has been effectuated,

Mvr. Woods' Compliance with the Subpoena

*3 Rule 45(c) {2)(B), Fed.R.Civ.P., provides (in relevant
part) that, in the event the person upon whom a subpoena
is served objects, the party serving the subpoena may, at
any time, file a motion to compel production. Here, the
Receiver has done just that. On November 27, 2012, this
Court issued a subpoena (see Doc. I, Exh. 3), which Mr.
Woods acknowledges he received on November 28, 2012 and
November 29, 2012 by federal express and certified mail (see
Doc. 1, Exh. 6{b) & Doc. 8, at p. 11). Mr. Woods then objected
to this subpoena. (See Doc. 1, Exh. 6(b) & Doc. 8, at pp. 11—
14). Notably, the Receiver disclosed Mr. Woods' objection to

the Court.? (See Doc. 1, at § 12 & Exh. 6). Subsequently,
on December 19, 2012, the Receiver's counsel emailed Mr.
Woods to discuss any objections that he may have (Doc. 1,
Exh. 1), to which Mr. Woods responded (Doc. 1, Exh. 9). The
Court will now address Mr. Woods' objections. {Doc. 8).

Mr. Woods objects contending that he has received three
subpoenas, which are redundant and serve as harassment.
The Court disagrees. As a point of clarification, the subpoena
issued on Qctober 30, 2012, in the N.C. Case was found
moot because the Receiver “re-issued [the subpoena] through
different procedures ....” (See Doc. 1, § 11 & Exh. 7). The
subpoena issued by this Court, which is dated November 27,
2012, and located in the record at Doc. 1, Exh. 3, is the
subpoena at issue here. It is clear from the record that this
subpoena (Doc. 1, Exh, 3) was merely provided to Mr. Woods
both by certified mail and federal express to ensure his receipt
of it.

Mr. Woods also argues that he did not receive prior notice of
the subpoena as required by Rule 45. Rule 45(b)(1) requires
prior notice to each parfp “[i]f the subpoena commnands the
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production of documents, electronically stored information,
or tangible things or the inspection of premises before
trial ...."" Here, Mr. Woods is not a party. Accordingly, Rule
45(b)(1) does not contemplate that he should get prior notice,

Mr, Woods' other arguments include that the Receiver's
requests are overly broad, irrelevant, create an uadue burden
and expense, that the Receiver already has the information,
and that some of the information is privileged. (Doc. 8).

At the outset it is important to note that the scope of discovery
is broad “in order to provide parties with information essential
to the proper litigation of ail relevant facts, to eliminate

surprise and to promote settlement.” Fj(,‘oker v. Duke & Co.,
Inc, VTTER.D, 682, 685 (M.D.Ala.1998), The Federal Rules
of Civil Procedure “strongly favor full discovery whenever
possible.” Farnsworth v. Proctor & Gamble Co., 758 F.2d
1545, 1547 (11th Cir.1985). Federal Rule of Civil Procedure
26(b)(1) allows parties to “obtain discovery regarding any
nonpriviledged matter that is relevant to any party's claim
or defense.” Relevance is “construed broadly to encompass
any matter that bears on, or that reasonably could lead to
other matters that could bear on, any issue that is or may

be in the case.” Oppenhefmer Fund, Inc. v. Sanders, 437
U.S. 340, 351, 98 S.Ct. 2380, 57 L.Ed.2d 253 (1978). A
discovery request “should be considered relevant if there is
any possibility that the information sought may be relevant
to the subject matter of the action.” Roesberg v. Johns—
Manville Corp., 85 ER.D. 292, 296 (E.D.Pa.1980); see also

De;’tchman V. E.R, Squibb & Sons, Inc., 740 E.2d 556 (7th
Cir.1984).

*4 Objections fo discovery must be “plain enough and
specific enough so that the court can understand in what way

the [discovery is] alleged to be objectionable.” Panola
Land Buyers Ass'n v. Shuman, 762 F.2d 1550, 1559 (11th

Cir.1985) (quoting Davis v Fendler, 650 F.2d 1154, 1160
(9th Cir.1981)). Objections to discovery on the grounds that it
is over broad and not relevant are not sufficient, the objecting
party should state why the discovery is overly broad or not

relevant, FaJosephs v Harris Corp., 677 F.2d 985, 992 (3d
Cir.1982),

Mr. Woods' objections to the Receiver's requests 1, 2, and
4-1), are similar, so the Court will address them together.
(Doc. 8, at 89, 12-14). Specifically, Mr. Woods suggests
that these requests are “overly broad” and create an “undue

burden” because he does not have any information and
that the Receiver already has this information. The Court
overrules Mr. Woods' objections. The Receiver's requests all
appear to be aimed at ascertaining Mr. Woods' involvement
with Rex Venture, which seems to be a relevant issue in the
N.C. Case. To the extent that Mr. Woods has information
in his possession pertaining to these requests, Mr, Woods
must produce such information. To the extent that Mr. Woods
does not have information, he must respond to the Receiver's
subpoena and notify the Receiver whether he ever had the
information, provide a description of the information, and
explain what happened to the information.

Mr. Woods objects to the Receiver's request 3 and contends
that the Receiver has this information because the Receiver

has called and emailed him.* (Doc. 8, at § & 12), The
Court overrules Mr. Woods' objections. Simply because
the Receiver has emailed and called Mr. Woods does not

mean that the Receiver has the information that it seeks.”
Mr. Woods must provide the Receiver with information
responsive to this request. At this time, however, Mr. Woods is
not required to disclose any of his passwords. If the Receiver
still seeks Mr. Woods' passwords, the Receiver shall file a
supplemental brief with this Court within twenty-one (21}
of the date of this Order providing legal authority which
would authorize the Court to compel Mr, Woods to disclose
his passwords.

Mr. Woods objects to the Receiver's requests 11-13,
contending that these requests are irrelevant. (Doc. 8, at
9 & 14). The Court disagrees and overrules Mr. Woods'
objections. The Receiver's requests all appear to be aimed
at ascertaining Mr. Woods involvement with Rex Venture,
which seems to be a relevant issue in the N.C. Case.
Accordingly, Mr, Woods shall produce documents and other
information responsive to these requests. Lastly, Mr. Woods
contends that the docwnents responsive to the Receiver's
request 12—-13 are privileged, (Doc. 8, at 4). Due to the
nature of the case, the Court disagrees, overrules Mr, Woods'
objection, and requires Mr. Woods to provide the requested
information to the Receiver.

Attorney's Fees

*5 Finally, Rex Venture secks “the Receiver's attorneys'
fees incurred in preparing, filing{,] and pursing this Motion
be taxed to Mr. Woods ...." (Doc. 1, at 5-6). However, Rex
Venture is not entitled to such an award. “Although Rule 45(c)
(2)(B)(i) authorizes the serving party to ‘move the issuing
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court for an order compelling production or inspection,’
there is no provision in Rule 45 for an award of expenses

for bringing such a motion.” See FE]BaiIey Industries, Inc.
v. CLJE Inc., 270 FR.D. 662, 672 (N.D.Fla.2010) (citing
Fed.R.Civ.P. 45). In addition, although Rule 37(a)(5)(A),
authorizes an award of “the movant's reasonable expenses
incurred in making [a] motion [to compel], including
attorney's fees,” courts in this circuit have held that Rule 37(a)
“does not appear to govern motions to compel production of
documents made pursuant to Rule 45.” See id.; see alse Kona
Springs Water Distrib., Ltd. v. World Triathlon Corp., 2006
WL 905517, at *2 (M.D.Fla. Apr.7, 2006) (court granted in
part and denied in part motion to compel compliance with
subpoena under Rule 45 and denied motion for sanctions,
finding “to the extent that Defendant seeks sanctions under
Rule 37, ... the rule [is] inapposite”) (citations omitied).
Accordingly, Rex Venture's request for fees is due to be
denied.

IIi. CONCLUSION

In light of the foregoing, Mr. Woods' Motion for the extent
set forth herein. Rex Venture's Motion to Compel {Doc. and
DENIED IN PART. The Motion is granted to the exfent
ordered to comply with the subpoena issued by the United
States District of Florida (“Exhibit A”) on or before April
11, 2013, to the the Motion is denied to the extent that Rex
Venture seeks fees. The copy of this Order to Mr. Nathaniel
Woods at 216 SW 11th Avenue, Ocala, Florida 34471.

IT IS SO ORDERED,

DONE and ORDERED,
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Footnotes
1 Securities and Exchange Commission v. Rex Venture Group, LLC d/b/a ZeekRewards.com and Paul Burks,
No. 3:12-cv-519 (W.D.N.C.2012).
2 In its Notice (Doc. 2), Rex Venture represents that it takes no position as to whether this document should

have been filed in this case; rather, Rex Venture submits that it is simply filing the Notice “so as not to
prejudice” Mr. Woods, who is acting pro se. (Doc. 2, {ff 5-6).

3 Mr. Woods contends that the Receiver did not notify the Court of his objections. This is simply not the
case. The Receiver specifically states that Mr. Woods filed a © ‘Request for Judicial Notice’ objecting to
the [sjubpoenas that had issued from the Middle District of Florida and again refused to produce any
documents.” (See Doc. 1, at 12 & Exh. 6). Moreover, the objections atftached to the Request for Judicial
Notice (Doc. 1, Exh. 6) are identical to the objections that Mr. Woods attached to his Objection to Receiver's
Motion to Compel (Doc. 8).

4 Request 3 seeks “[dlocuments sufficient to show all user names, passwords, email addresses, and accounts
used by Mr. Woods in connection with {Rex Venture]. (This request is not meant to include passwords to
third party financial accounts used in connection with [Rex Venture]; however, documents sufficient to show
the location and account number of such accounts should be included in your response.)” (See Dac. 1, Exh.
3,173

5 Notably, Mr. Woods also argues that the Receiver's attorney contacted him by email in violation of the Federal
Rules. (Doc. 8, at 5). The Court disagrees and finds no apparent violation of the Federal Rules.

End of Document © 2022 Thomson Reuters. No claim to original U.S, Govemment Works.
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1999 WL 1043861
United States District Court,
M.D. Florida.

Courtney C, CODRINGTON, et al., Plaintiffs,
.
ANHEUSER-BUSCH, INC., a
foreign corporation, Defendant.

No. 98-2417-CIV-T-26F.
]
Filed Nov, 25, 1998,
|
Oct. 15, 1999,

Attorneys and Law Firms

Thomas W. Dickson, Fechter & Dickson, P.A,, Tampa, FL,
for Courtney C. Codrington, plaintiff,

Thomas W. Dickson, for Daniel Hemandez, plaintiff,
Thomas W. Dickson, for Harold W. Shepherd, plaintiff.
Thomas W. Dickson, for James W. Smith, plaintiff,

Thomas W. Dickson, for Lenzo R, Canty, plaintiff,

Thomas W. Dickson, for Henry Marks, plaintiff.

Thomas W. Dickson, for Robert B. Houghton, plaintiff.
Thomas W. Dickson, for George Harrison, plaintiff.

Thomnas W. Dickson, for Edgar Giles, plaintiff.

Thomas W. Dickson, (See above), for Benito Canto, plaintiff,

Marcia Morales Howard, Patricia Duffy Barksdale, McGuire,
Woods, Battle & Boothe, LLP, Jacksonville, FL, USA, Eva
S. Tashjian-Brown, McGuire, Woods, Baitle & Boothe,
Richmond, VA, Rodney A. Satterwhite, McGuire, Woods,
Baitle & Boothe, L.L.P, Richmond, VA, for Anheuser—
Busch, Inc., a foreign corporation, defendant.

C. Felix Miller, Equal Employment Opportunity
Commission, St.Louis District Office, St.Louis, MO, for
EEOC, movant,

ORDER

22-BK-G

Attachment 2 of 2
SCRIVEN, Magistrate J.

*1 THIS CAUSE comes on for consideration of Plaintiffs'
Motion to Compel (Dkt.12) and the EEQC's memorandum in
opposition thereto (Dkt.13).

Plaintiffs, former employees of Defendant, Anheuser—Busch,
filed this action on November 25, 1998, Plaintiffs claim
that Defendant discriminated against them on the basis of
Plaintiffs' age in violation of the Age Discrimination in
Employment Act, 29 U.S.C. § 621, ef seq.

On June 14, 1999, Plaintiffs served the EEOC, a non-party to
this action, with a subpoena duces recum requiring the EEOC
to produce documents relating to approximately 25 charges
brought by other employees against Defendant. Plaintiffs also
requested that the EEOC produce any and all charges or
records of any other charge of discrimination filed against the
Defendant, originating in Tampa, Florida, from December 1,
1995 to the present. The subpoena advised that the EEOC
could comply by “providing legible copies of the items to
be produced to the attorney whose name appears on this
subpoena on or before the scheduled date of production.”

On June 24, 1999, the EEOC served its objection to the
subpoena. The EEQOC contends as follows: (1) the subpoena
is procedurally defective in that it was not persenally served
on the EEOC Record's custodian, but rather was served by
U.S. Mail; (2) the subpoena is procedurally defective in
that the Plaintiffs did not include a check for attendance
fees and mileage; (3) certain of the documents requested
are confidential pursuant to Section 107(a) of the ADA and
pursuant to Title VII; and (4) certain documents are not

discoverable under the Freedom of Information Act, F:IS
U.8.C. § 552. Plaintiffs now move to compel the EEOC to
comply with the subpoena. The Court addresses each of the
EEOC's objections in turn below.

1. The Alleged Procedural Defects

As indicated, the EEOC contends that the subpoena is
procedurally defective in that Plaintiffs did not personally
serve the subpoena on the EEQC, but served the subpoena via
first class U.S. Mail and, further, the subpoena did not include
a check for attendance and mileage. After a review of Rule 45
and the case authority cited by the parties, the Court rejects
the EEOC's arguments,

WESTLAW © 2022 Thomson Reuters. No claim to onglnal U S. Government Works 1
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Rule 45(b)(1), Fed.R.Civ.P., provides in pertinent part as
follows: “Service of 4 subpoena upon a person named therein
shall be made by delivering a copy thereof to such person
and, if the person's attendance is commanded, by tendering
to that person the fees for one day's attendance and the
mileage allowed by law....” The Undersigned respectfully

disagrees with the court's decisicn in %In re Nathurst, 183
B.R. 953, 955 (M.D.Fla.1995), in which the court found that
“a subpoena cannot be effectively served by mail even if
sent by certitied mail.” Instead, the Court finds that nothing
in the plain language of the Rule requires personal service.

See FE‘Kiug v Crown Plastering Corp., 170 F.R.D. 355,
356 (BE.D.N.Y.1997)(mo need for personal service of Rule
45 subpoena “so long as service is made in a manner that
reasonably insures actual receipt of the subpoena by the

witness”); FDoe v Hersemann, 155 ERD. 630, 630631
(N.I).Ind.1994) (“The plain language of the rule requires only
that the subpoena be defivered to the person served by a
qualified person®).

*2  Furthermore, the EEOC has not demonstrated any
prejudice resulting from Plaintiffs' service of the subpoena by
mail. Specifically, it is undisputed that the EEQC received
actual notice of the subpoena, as evidenced by the EEOC's
timely objection to the subpoena. At this point, requiring the
Plaintiffs to personally serve the subpoena would result in
mere undue delay.

Additionally, the Court rejects the EEOC's contention that the
subpoena is defective in that Plaintiffs did not include a check
for fees and mileage. As indicated, the subpoena notified the
EEOC that it could comply with the subpoena by merety
mailing the documents to Plaintiffs’ counsel, Thus, an EEOC
representative was not required to travel to Tampa, Florida, to
personally deliver the documents., Moreover, Plaintiffy state
that they will reimburse the EEOC for its copying costs upon
notification of the amount.

Having found that the subpoena is not procedurally defective,
the Court turns to the EEOC's substantive arguments.

11. Confidentiality

A. Information Relating to Charges Under Title VII or the
ADA
The EEOC contends that some of the requested documents
relate to Title VIL and ADA charges by persons who are not
parties to the instant lawsuit, and, as such, the documents

cannot be disclosed. The EEOC specifically relies on F:I42
U.S.C. § 2000e—8(e), which provides that it is unlawful for
an officer or employee of the EEOC “to make public in any
manner whatever information obtained by the Commission
pursuant to its authority under this section prior to the
institution of any proceeding under this subchapter involving
such information....” This provision is also applicable to cases

brought pursuant to the ADA, See 53]42 U.8.C. § 12117(a).

Plaintiffs respond that the prohibition of F”342 Us.C. §
2000e—8(e) does not forbid an officer or employer of the
EEOC from disclosing materials to a charging party if the
documents relate to other charges against the same respondent
that are like and related to the charging party's allegations of
diserimination, (Dkt.12, p. 5.)

The BEEOC correctly points out, however, that the Supreme

Court rejected such an argument in F:]Eqaml Employment
Opportunity Conunission v. Associated Dry Goods Corp., 449
U.S8. 590, 101 8.Ct, 817, 66 L.Ed.2d 762 (1980). Specifically,
while the Court found permissible the disclosure of EEQC
investigative information in a charging party's file to the party
himself, the Court also found that “nothing in the statute or its
legislative history reveals any intent to allow the Commission
to reveal to that charging party information in the files of
other charging parties who have brought claims against the

satne employer.” Fald. at 603 (footnote omitted). The Court
continued that “there is no reason why the charging party
should know the content of any other employee's charge, and
he must be considered a member of the public with respect to
charges filed by other people. With respect to all files other
than his own, he is a stranger.” /d.

*3 Thus, given the limited disclosure of certain EEOC files
permitted by dssociated Dry Goods, this Court DENIES
the Plaintifls' motion to the subpoena to the extent that
Plaintiffs request the files of persons who are not parties to
this action and who claimed violations of Title VII or the
ADA against his Defendant. If it has not already done so, the
EEOC shall produce, however, any files and/or documents
relating to the named Plaintiffs, Furthermore, if there is
information contained in files of charging parties other than
the named Plaintiffs that is generally relevant to the named
Plaintiffs and the Defendant in this case and is used by
the agency in consideration of the Plaintifis' charge, but
due to administrative convenience is not contained in the
named Plaintiffs’ files, it too shall be produced. See EEQOC v.
Associated Dry Goods Corp., 499 U.S, 590, 604 (1981). In
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Associated Dry Goods, the Court specifically noted that by
including information about an employer's general practices
that would be relevant to each charging party in each party's
file, the Comumission can fully comply with the statute while
giving each party the information necessary to evaluate the
strength of his or her case. Jd.

B. Charges Under the ADEA Only
Both Plaintiff and the EEQOC recognize that the ADEA
does not contain a similar confidentiality provision to that
confained in Title VII and the ADA. The EEOC argues,
however, that to the extent that Plaintift requests information
relating its investigation of charges filed under the ADEA,
the disclosure of such information would constitute an
unwarranted invasion of privacy under the Freedom of

Information Act and should not be required. See F‘—JS
U.S.C. § 552(b)(7)C) (exempting from disclosure to the
public “records or information cempiled for law enforcement
purposes, but only to the extent that the production of such
law enforcement records or information ... could reasonably
be expected to constitute an unwarranted invasion of personal
privacy....”) Plaintiffs respond that this exemption of the
FOIA provides that requests for open EEQC case files are
exempt from public disclosures as investigatory records but
does ntot apply to closed files. Plaintiffs contend that they do
not seek any information from open files and, as such, the
documents must be produced. Neither party points this Court
to any authority in support of its position,

First, the Court rejects Plaintiffs’ claim that Fj§ 552(b)
{7}(C) applies solely to open files. As indicated, Plaintiffs
fail to point this Court to any authority supporting their

contention. Nothing in the plain language of F‘j§ 552(b)
(7)C) suggests that the exemption is limited to “open”
files. Furthermore, this Court's own research has failed to
locate any authority suggesting such a limitation. While

the exemption located at P3§ 552(b)(7)(A ) appears to

apply solely to pending investigations, see Frito—l.ay
v US. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, 964
F.Supp. 236, 238 (W.D.Ken.1997), there simply is no similar

limitation with regard to Ft'§ 552(b}(7)C ). The Court
therefore turns to the EEQC's contention that the information
is not subject to disclosure because it would likety result in an
unwarranted invasion of privacy.

*4 As the philosophy behind the FOIA is to allow broad
disclosure, the courts interpret the exemptions of the FOIA

narrowly. See %Nadler v ULS. Department of Justice, 955
F.2d 1479, 1484 (11th Cir.1992). The government agency
seeking to withhold the information requested has the burden
of proving the applicability of an exception to the FOIA. 14,
In this case, the EEOC must demonstrate that the information
sought was compiled for law enforcement purposes and that
its disclosure ““could reasonably be expected to constitute an
unwarranted invasion of personal privacy.” See Rosenglick
v. Infernal Revenue Service, No. 97-747-Civ—Orl-18A,

1998 WL 773629, #2 (M.D.Fla. March 10, 1998). “The
determination of whether the agency has met its burden is
difticult, so several tools have been developed to aid the
courts. Available methods for determination include a Vaughn
index, ex parte in camera review of the requested documents
in their unredacted form, or fact-specific affidavits of the
parties. The trial court must find an adequate factual basis to
support a finding or privilege, but the use of the described

methods is discretionary.” IECappabr'mzca v. Commissioner,
United States Customs Service, 847 F.Supp. 1558, 1561
{M.D.Fla.1994)

Plaintifts do not appear to dispute that the information
sought was compiled for law enforcement purposes. Thus,
the Court turns to whether its disclosure would constitute
an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy. In meeting
its burden with respect to this prerequisite, the government
agency need not demonstrate “to a certainty that release
will lead to an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy....”
1d. at 1448 (citation omitted). Rather, the EEQC need only
demonstrate a “reasonable expectation” of such an invasion.
Id.

To determine whether the disclosure of documents will result
in an unwarranted invasion of privacy, the court must balance
the individual's privacy interest against the public interest

in disclosure of the information. PJO'Kane v. United States
Customs Service, 169 F.3d 1308, 1309 (I11th Cir.i1999);

@Nad!er: 955 F.2d at 1487. “Only the interest of the general
public, and nof that of the private litigant, is relevant to [the

court's] inquiry.” @Iaﬁ at 1489. “Disclosure of the requested
information is in the public interest only if it furthers the
public's statutorily created right to be informed about what
their government is up to,” Id. {citation omitted).
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1. Individuals' Privacy Interests
While this Court is unaware of any published or unpublished
opinion where a court found that EROC files relating to

ADEA claims were exempt from disclosure under F‘:|§
552(b)(7)(C), courts have found information relating to other
investigations is exempt. For instance, information gathered
during an internal investigation relating to allegations of
harassment and retaliation has been found to be exempt from

disclosure. See Cappabimaca v. Commissioner, Unifed
States Customs Service, 847 F.Supp. 1558 (M.D.Fla.1994),
Similarly, information relating to an OSHA investigation has
been afforded protection. See L & C Marine Transport, 740
F.2d at 922,

#§ The Eleventh Circuit has found that an individual has
a substantial privacy interest where disclosure would lead to
the type of harm, embarrassment and possible retaliation. L
& C Marine Transport, 740 F.2d at 922 (names and other
identifying information related to an OHSA investigation
exempt from disclosure). The court explained that, “[t|here
can be little doubt that an employee will feel more free to
talk with federal law enforcement officials about possible
employer violations if he feels his name will not be attached to
his statements. /d. The court further found that an individual
docs not lose his/her privacy interest simply because his
identity may be discovered through other means. L & C
Marine Transport, 740 F.2d at 922. See Lioyd & Henniger v,
Marshall, 526 E.Supp. 485 (M.D.Fia.1981) (home addresses
of witnesses and employees interviewed by OSHA could be

withheld under F:|§ 552(b)(7)(C) where disclosure of home
addresses would subject the persons (o precisely the harm the
exemption was intended to prevent).

ii. Public Interest
“In order to compel release of materials, there must be a
public inferest because ‘something, even a modest privacy

interest outweighs nothing every time.’ » FHCappabianca V.
Commissioner, United States Customs Service, 347 E.Supp.
1558, 1564 (M.D.Fla.1994) (citation omitted).

The court it Nedler found that the government properly
utilized the exemption under 552(b){7)(c) where disclosure of
identities of FBI witnesses would disclose virtually nothing
about the conduct of the government. /4. The court explained,
“Enabling the public to learn about the conduct of private
citizens is not the type of public interest the FOIA was
intended to serve.” Id. Similarly, the court in L & C Marine
Transport found that information, including the names of
employee witnesses of an accident who were interviewed
by OSHA, fells within the 7© exemption where there
was no public interest in the identities of the witnesses.
740 F.2d at 922. The court acknowledged the plaintiff's
contention that it needed the information to use as evidence
in pending litigation, but explained that the private needs of
a company plays no part in the determination of whether

disclosure is appropriate. ld. Accord FUCappabim:ca |
Commissioner, United States Customs Service, 8347 F.Supp.
1558 (M.D.F1a.1994). See Lioyd & Henniger v. Marshall, 526
F.Supp. 485 (M.D.Fla.1981) (“[TThe disclosure provisions
of FOIA are not a substitute for discovery, and a party's
asserted need for docwments in connection with litigation will
not affect, one way or the other, a determination of whether
disclosure is warranted under FOIA.”} (citation omitted).

Like in L & C Marine Transport, Plaintiffs fail to present any
evidence as to how disclosure of the information will serve
the public interest. Rather, it appears that Plaintiffs seck the
requested information solely for use in the instant litigation.

*6 It is ORDERED as follows:

The Plaintiffs' Motion to Compel (Dkt.12) is DENIED, except
as set forth on page five (5) herein, in accordance with the
foregoing. Production required by this order shall be made
within (15) days of the date of this order. Each party shall bear
its own fees and costs associated with the filing of this motion.

All Citations

Not Reported in F.Supp.2d, 1999 WL 1043861, 81 Fair
Empl Prac.Cas. (BNA) 263, 80 Empl. Prac. Dec. P 40,461
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